
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016. The meeting took place in the Public Safety Facility Community 
Room, 4 Fairgrounds Road, Nantucket, MA 02554. Members of the Board present were Rick Atherton, 
Robert DeCosta, Matt Fee, Dawn E. Hill Holdgate and James R. Kelly. 
  
I. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kelly called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
II. BOARD ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
The agenda was unanimously accepted as presented. 
 
III. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1. Town Manager C. Elizabeth Gibson announced that the Board of Selectmen meeting is being 
video/audio recorded, in accordance with the requirements of the Open Meeting Law. 
 
2. The October 17, 2016 Special Town Meeting starts Monday, October 17, 2016 at 6:00 PM at the Nantucket 
High School Auditorium, 10 Surfside Road; the special voter registration deadline is Friday, October 7, 2016 at 
8:00 PM. 
 
3. Town Clerk:  The voter registration deadline for the November 8, 2016 State Election is Wednesday, October 
19, 2016 at 8:00 PM. 
 
4. Town Clerk:  Early voting for the 2016 State Election will occur at the Town Building, 16 Broad Street from 
Monday, October 24, 2016 to Thursday, November 3, 2016 from 8:30 AM to 3:30 PM and Friday, November 4, 
2016 from 8:30 AM to 4:00 PM. Early voting by mail ends November 4, 2016 at noon. The Central Tabulation 
Facility will be at the Nantucket High School, 10 Surfside Road on Tuesday, November 8, 2016 from 8:00 AM to 
8:00 PM. 
 
5. The 2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant is open for citizen warrant article submittals through November 21, 
2016 at 4:00 PM. 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
None. 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES, WARRANTS, PENDING CONTRACTS 
1. Approval of Minutes of January 13, 2016 at 6:00 PM; September 28, 2016 at 6:00 PM. The minutes of 
January 13, 2016 at 6:00 PM and September 28, 2016 at 6:00 PM were approved by the unanimous 
consent of the Board. 
 
2. Approval of Payroll Warrants for Week Ending October 2, 2016. The payroll warrants for week ending 
October 2, 2016 were approved by the unanimous consent of the Board. 
 
3. Approval of Treasury Warrants for October 5, 2016. The treasury warrants for October 5, 2016 were 
approved by the unanimous consent of the Board. 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 1 of 6 



 
4. Approval of Pending Contracts for October 5, 2016 - as Set Forth on the Spreadsheet Identified as 
Exhibit 1, Which Exhibit is Incorporated Herein by Reference. Chairman Kelly asked that the Jetties 
Concession contract be reviewed and voted on separately. Ms. Gibson reviewed the first three pending 
contracts and answered questions from Board members. The first three pending contracts for October 5, 
2016 were approved by the unanimous consent of the Board. Chairman Kelly said regarding the Jetties 
Concession, Ms. Gibson will make an opening presentation, then the Board will have a question and 
answer period and then he will open the discussion to public comment. Ms. Gibson reviewed the recent 
history of bidding out the Jetties Concession, noting the Board made changes to the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) requirements/criteria. She said of the six RFP responses received, three were disqualified upon 
review by an internal review committee consisting of Business License Inspector Amy Baxter, Director of 
Culture and Tourism Melissa Murphy, Public Health Director Roberto Santamaria and Selectman Dawn Hill 
Holdgate and the recommendation is to award the Jetties Concession contract to Sandbar, LLC. Ms. Baxter 
reviewed the RFP review process and why three of the responses were disqualified as they did not follow 
Chapter 30B Procurement Law. Attorney John Giorgio of Town Counsel’s office reviewed the rationale of 
the state Procurement Law regarding price proposals vs. technical proposals, noting the price proposal 
can’t be opened before the technical proposal so price doesn’t color the judgment of the review committee. 
Ms. Baxter answered questions from Board members, noting the review committee followed the law 
carefully while considering the wishes of the Board. Mr. DeCosta asked if he could question the partners of 
Sandbar, LLC as he wants to understand their plan for the Jetties before he agrees to a lease, specifically if 
“buck a shuck” will continue, if beach chairs will still be available to sit on the beach, and will the 
introduction of fire pits include couches and lounge areas similar to Galley Beach. Attorney Giorgio said the 
Board can question the partners but anything they say will not be legally binding until an award is made and 
a lease is negotiated. He added that the Board can dictate criteria for the lease. Attorney Sarah Alger, 
representing Sandbar, LLC, said she understands the Board has an option to delay the award or re-issue a 
RFP with substantial changes to the RFP if an award is not made tonight. She added that her client put in 
significant time, thought and energy into their RFP response. Chairman Kelly asked the partners to 
describe their “vision” of the restaurant; what the experience might be like on an ideal day. Attorney Alger 
said this is “unusual” under Chapter 30B, adding the point of Chapter 30B is to maintain criteria and said 
she hopes the Board stays within the law. Sandbar, LLC partner Nicholas Nass stated the plan is to keep 
the Jetties a family friendly, local community type of place; a “clam shack” with clam rolls, lobster rolls, 
burgers, hot dogs and ice cream with expanded raw bar options. He said they will have the restaurant open 
in the shoulder seasons and available to anyone, adding there will be a full breakfast menu on weekends 
with a scaled-down breakfast during the week. Mr. Nass said the idea is to have a “fun, positive vibe”. Mr. 
Atherton expresses his concerns that family friendly means cost appropriate, adding he doesn’t want to see 
the prices doubled. He asked how this can be addressed. Attorney Giorgio said it can be addressed under 
the terms of the lease. Some discussion followed among Board members regarding terms of the lease. Mr. 
Nass answered questions from Board members. Sandbar, LLC partner George Kelly, thanked the Board for 
its consideration. Attorney Alger said she feels her client’s proposal “speaks for itself”. Marshall Thompson, 
the current leaseholder of the Jetties Concession, said he is “surprised” that the contract has been awarded 
to Sandbar, LLC, as he feels his program is the “epitome” of family friendly and he is sensitive to that, 
noting the Jetties is a restaurant more than a bar. He said providing breakfast is difficult because of a lack 
of refrigeration and storage but that in his proposal he noted he will be partnering with Patrick Ridge to 
have a food truck on site for breakfast items. Mr. Thompson stated his proposal also said it would be open 
for an expanded season. He said there are other parts he has heard nothing about such as the retail store 
and functions. He concluded that he doesn’t understand the criteria and how Sandbar, LLC scored higher 
than the Jetties. Mr. Fee asked if the review committee considered staffing, housing and operations. Ms. 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 2 of 6 



Baxter answered affirmatively, noting Mr. Thompson’s proposal and Sandbar, LLC were very close if not 
equal on that part, but that Sandbar, LLC came out on top with a “deeper”, more responsive submission. 
Mr. Fee questioned the percentage over $1 million in revenue proposals. Assistant Town Manager Gregg 
Tivnan said there was no way to make projections on what the revenue might be as there is no historical 
revenue data for the concession. Discussion followed among Board members. Mr. Atherton said he 
commended and respected the work of the review committee, and moved to award the contract to 
Sandbar, LLC per the review committee recommendation; Ms. Hill Holdgate seconded, noting she sat on 
the committee and it was an “extensive” process. Mr. Fee said he doesn’t like the way this is “set up” and 
would feel better knowing that if lease negotiations fail with Sandbar, LLC that the contract could be 
awarded to Mr. Thompson’s the Jetties. Some discussion followed among Board members, Mr. Tivnan and 
Attorney Giorgio on Chapter 30B Procurement Law and what is allowed. Chairman Kelly said he is 
“struggling” because of the qualitative assessment and said he feels the pricing is incomplete because no 
analysis was done on the percentage. Attorney Giorgio informed the Board that if it cannot reach a lease 
agreement with Sandbar, LLC the contract can go to the next bidder but it would be “fraught” with 
problems. On the motion, so voted 4-1. Mr. Fee was opposed. Mr. DeCosta said the “key” is the negotiation 
of the lease. Attorney Giorgio clarified that the Chapter 30B Procurement Manual states that the Board can 
only go to the second bidder if it is awarded within the award period 45 days after the proposals were due. 
Some discussion followed on the Board setting an executive session date to discuss the terms of the lease. 
Attorney Alger thanked the Board, noting her clients have no intention of turning the Jetties into the next 
Galley Beach and they will work in good faith. The Board scheduled the executive session meeting for 
Wednesday, October 12, 2016 at 5:00 PM. 
 
VII. CONSENT ITEMS 
1. Gift Acceptance:  Natural Resources Department; Our Island Home. Ms. Gibson reviewed the various 
gifts for the Natural Resources Department and Our Island Home. By unanimous consent, the Board 
accepted $289.90 from the second proceeds of Sea Saw for the Town’s Brant Point Shellfish Propagation 
Facility; 200 oysters from Gordon Fraser of Great Point Oysters for the oyster restoration site; $480 from 
Proud Pour Inc. for the Town’s Oyster Restoration Program; and, $57,949.59 from the Estate of Nancy 
Chase for the Our Island Home Gift Account. 
 
VIII. CITIZEN/DEPARTMENT REQUESTS 
1. Nantucket Preservation Trust:  Request for Preliminary Review of Preservation Restriction to be Held by 
Nantucket Preservation Trust for Hospital Thrift Shop at 17 India Street. Mr. DeCosta moved to send the 
Preservation Restriction for the Hospital Thrift Shop to Town Counsel for formal review; Mr. Fee seconded. All in 
favor, so voted. 
 
IX. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Review/Request for Approval of “Findings of Violation and Order for Compliance on Consent” Document with 
Environmental Protection Agency in Connection with Sewage Discharge Violation in June, 2016. Ms. Gibson 
reviewed a sewer pipe leak on Flora Street, which discharged sewage on three occasions from 2015 to present. 
Department of Public Works Director Kara Buzanoski reviewed the sewer overflows, noting there were two on 
Flora Street in 2015 which were reported to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Conservation Commission and the Harbor Master. She said 
the DPW was ordered to design a corrective measure which was not done, and resulted in a third sewer 
discharge in 2016 which resulted in a DEP Order of Non-Compliance. Ms. Buzanoski asked the Board to 
execute the administrative order, and answered questions from Board members. Ms. Buzanoski said the repair 
is scheduled for Flora Street with Toscana but she is not sure when it scheduled, adding that the repairs will be 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 3 of 6 



new costs, not costs already figured into the budget. Attorney Giorgio reviewed possible penalties under the 
Federal and Massachusetts Clean Water Acts, adding that the administrative order was issued without penalties 
but if correction is not taken the Town could be subject to penalties. Mr. DeCosta asked that the Board be 
informed when items in the order are complete. Ms. Buzanoski clarified that the Flora Street repair is separate 
from a larger clay pipe replacement in the area, which is going to take 360 days to complete a plan and make 
corrective measures, and that a Request for Proposals (RFP) will need to be issued for construction. Ms. 
Gibson suggested monthly updated with the Board. Mr. DeCosta moved to sign the Order for Compliance; Mr. 
Fee seconded. All in favor, so voted. Nantucket Land Council executive director Cormac Collier voiced his 
concern that the broken pipe is resulting in ongoing sewer leakage into the ground and suggested that Toscana 
be called and the project be fast tracked. Mr. Collier also suggested that the Board institute a policy that 
requires reports to be issued within a week of issues like this. Mr. DeCosta said he takes issue that this sewer 
leak was not fixed as quickly as water breaks are, and asked how long the Town has been waiting on Toscana. 
Mr. Atherton noted that the Town should spend money on maintaining the existing sewer pipes it has before 
investing millions of dollars on laying new sewer pipes. 
 
At 7:24 PM Mr. DeCosta left the meeting; he returned at 7:26 PM. 
 
2. Update Regarding Richmond Development Sewer Dedication Agreement. Ms. Gibson reviewed a summary 
of Richmond sewer projects and required Town acceptance status and answered questions from Board 
members. She stated that the Board last reviewed the matter at its August 3, 2016 meeting, and that since then 
Town Counsel and Richmond have negotiated terms of the sewer connection and dedication agreement. 
Attorney Giorgio reviewed revisions to the agreement, noting the revisions from Richmond are all legally 
acceptable. Attorney Giorgio proposed a single document covering all three sewer lines with included 
conditions. He noted that regarding the Greglen Avenue sewer line, some sewer connection permits were 
issued by the Town prematurely and suggested this was a “unique” circumstance. Attorney Giorgio reviewed 
details of the agreement. Attorney Giorgio and Ms. Buzanoski answered questions from Board members. 
Director of Planning Andrew Vorce answered questions from Board members regarding bedroom limitations. 
Attorney Giorgio suggested the Board vote to permit those properties which have already been issued sewer 
connection permits to connect into the Town sewer system, and to vote to execute the agreement. Mr. Atherton 
asked if the agreement covers others who want to tie into sewer but have not been able to, to date. David 
Armanetti, Patty Roggeveen and attorney Andrew Burek, all of Richmond Development, discussed the 
document language. Mr. Atherton moved to permit all properties along Greglen Avenue to connect to the sewer 
system subject to them providing easements to the Town; Mr. DeCosta seconded. All in favor, so voted. 
Chairman Kelly said he is not ready to sign the agreement tonight as he feels the two sides are not on full 
agreement on some matters. Some discussion followed on the cost of upgrading the Town’s sewer pump 
station. Ms. Roggeveen said Richmond wants an independent engineer to review the plan. Mr. Fee said he 
feels Richmond is doing its due diligence regarding engineering and he’s worried that the Town doesn’t do that 
same due diligence. Attorney Giorgio said he has said from “day one” that the “cost is the cost” and the cost 
should be borne by Richmond. Mr. DeCosta took issue with the delay in the engineering of the pump station. 
Ms. Buzanoski said there has been no funding for the engineering plan and the DPW was waiting on $100,000 
from Richmond that is part of the agreement and due upon signing the agreement to pay for a plan. Chairman 
Kelly said that doesn’t make sense and he has “no confidence” in the numbers. Mr. Armanetti said Richmond 
won’t fund overages for the redesign of the pump station over $250,000 at 100%, not when Richmond is already 
“mitigating the cost”. Following some discussion, Mr. Atherton moved that the Town agrees to split overages 
over $275,000 50%/50% with Richmond up to $375,000, and any costs over $375,000 are Richmond’s 
responsibility 100%; Mr. DeCosta seconded. Mr. Armanetti said he assumes that is based on the scope of the 
work currently on the table. On the motion, all in favor, so voted. Attorney Giorgio said he and Attorney Burek 
will work out the details and will have a final version for the Board to vote on and sign at its meeting next week. 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 4 of 6 



 
At 8:22 PM Ms. Hill Holdgate let the meeting; she returned at 8:24 PM. 
 
3. Review Proposed Scheduling for Town-sponsored 2017 Fourth of July Activities (Fireworks, Main Street). Ms. 
Gibson reviewed the Police Chief’s recommendation for the 2017 Fourth of July Town-sponsored activities. Mr. 
DeCosta moved to hold the fireworks on Monday, July 3, 2017 and the Main Street activities on Tuesday, July 
4, 2017; Ms. Hill Holdgate seconded. Director of Culture and Tourism Melissa Murphy said that the Visitor 
Services Advisory Committee met regarding the proposed dates and members of the Nantucket Lodging 
Association were represented, and they agree with the proposed schedule. On the motion, all in favor, so voted. 
 
4. Review of Preliminary Potential 2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles. This matter was tabled to the 
Board’s October 12, 2016 meeting. 
 
5. Review of December 6, 2016 Draft Special Town Election Ballot Questions. Ms. Gibson noted the ballot is 
scheduled to be adopted by the Board at its October 19, 2016 meeting. Mr. DeCosta noted he and Mr. Atherton 
will be away on that day. Ms. Gibson noted that the full cost ($2.4 million) of a lined landfill cell is in ballot 
question number three. Some discussion followed on whether or not to include the lined cell or not. The Board 
consensus is to leave the question in. It was agreed that the final ballot will be ready for Board’s adoption on 
October 12, 2016 to allow for the full Board to vote. 
 
X. SELECTMEN’S REPORTS/COMMENT 
1. Review/Action to Amend Memorandum of Agreement between Town and Nantucket Planning and Economic 
Development Commission to Remove Public Health from PLUS (Planning and Land Use Services). Ms. Gibson 
reviewed this matter to formally remove Public Health from PLUS. Mr. Fee moved to approve the amended 
MOA to remove Public Health from PLUS and to authorize the chairman to sign; Mr. DeCosta seconded. Mr. 
Atherton said he is “puzzled” by the terms of the original agreement regarding termination of the agreement. 
Chairman Kelly noted that Attorney Giorgio has issued a legal opinion on the matter which will be circulated 
among the Board members. Attorney Giorgio reviewed two different methods for termination which are allowed 
for under the MOA. On the motion, so voted 4-1. Mr. Atherton was opposed. 
 
2. Discussion/Action Regarding Sewer Funding Policy (from September 14, 2016 Meeting). Ms. Gibson 
reviewed the proposed sewer funding policy, which came out of a Board discussion on September 14, 2016. Mr. 
DeCosta moved to approve the proposed sewer funding policy; Ms. Hill Holdgate seconded. Mr. Fee said sewer 
should be set up to encourage sewer connections quickly. He also said for a future discussion, the Board should 
discuss cost of living increases on sewer connection fees and Sewer Privilege Fees so that they automatically 
increase every year. On the motion, all in favor, so voted. 
 
3. Committee Reports. Mr. DeCosta reported that he and the County Commission’s fisheries representative 
Pete Kaizer and Natural Resources Coordinator Jeff Carlson have been working on a letter to the Mass. 
Division of Marine Fisheries which will be going out tomorrow via email. Ms. Hill Holdgate reported that the 
Community Preservation Committee started reviewing funding request applications today. 
 
XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Public Hearing to Consider the Appeal of Lisa Bouchard and Michael Pearson of Historic District Commission 
(HDC) Approval of Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) No. 66258, with Regard to the Property Location of 24 
Hawthorne Lane, Nantucket, Map 56, Parcel 242. Chairman Kelly opened the public hearing and reviewed the 
HDC appeals procedure. Appellant Michael Pearson explained that he and appellant Lisa Bouchard were 
aggrieved by the HDC’s approval of their shed application because 1) they can’t build the structure they want 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 5 of 6 



because of conditions imposed by the HDC; 2) they can’t use the materials they want and therefore costs have 
increased; 3) they feel the HDC should have issued a certificate on non-applicability vs. a COA as they feel the 
HDC has no jurisdiction due to the lack of visibility of the shed; 4) that the proposed location of the shed is 
“completely shielded” by dense foliage and is 60’ off Hawthorne Lane; and 5) they are aggrieved because no 
consideration was given whether or not the shed can be seen. HDC Chairman Kristine Glazier said the HDC 
made no requirements regarding materials and only asked for clarification on the materials proposed. HDC 
alternate member Val Oliver said the application was approved as submitted, noting the driveway for 24 
Hawthorne Lane is located on an easement over Land Bank property. She added there is no application for a 
certificate of non-applicability, yet. Mr. Pearson said the “test” is that the structure has to be visible and that the 
HDC stated it could maybe be see it at some time. Mr. Vorce said the application speaks for itself. Mr. Pearson 
reiterated that the shed cannot be seen from a public road and therefore the HDC should not have acted on the 
application. Attorney Giorgio said Land Bank land is the equivalent of public park land and there has been no 
mention of visibility in the dead of winter when the foliage is gone. Chairman Kelly closed the public hearing. Mr. 
Fee said he feels the Board should uphold the HDC. Chairman Kelly said he feels the HDC process was 
appropriate. Mr. Atherton agreed. Ms. Hill Holdgate said she doesn’t feel the HDC acted arbitrarily or 
capriciously and the applicant can revise the application and request different materials. Ms. Hill Holdgate 
moved to uphold the HDC decision and deny the appeal; Mr. Atherton seconded. So voted 4-1. Mr. DeCosta 
was opposed. 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was unanimously adjourned at 9:20 PM. 
 
Approved the 26th day of October, 2016. 

Board of Selectmen Minutes of the Meeting of October 5, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
Page 6 of 6 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
OCTOBER 5, 2016 – 6:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY COMMUNITY ROOM 
4 FAIRGROUNDS ROAD 

NANTUCKET, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
List of documents used at the meeting: 
 
III. 3. Memo from Town Clerk, re: voter registration 
III. 4. Memo from Town Clerk, re: early voting for State Election 
VI. 1. Draft minutes of January 13, 2016 at 6:00 PM; September 28, 2016 at 6:00 PM 
VI. 4. Pending contracts spreadsheet for October 5, 2016; memo from Town Manager re: Jetties 

Concession bid award; Jetties criteria; price proposals; Sandbar proposal; Jetties proposal; 
Starfish bid 

VII. 1. Consent recommendations; Natural Resources Department memo; Our Island Home 
memo 

VIII. 1. Cover letter from Nantucket Preservation Trust; preservation restriction for Hospital Thrift 
Shop 

IX. 1. Memo from DPW Director, re: sewer discharge violation; findings of Violation & Order for 
Compliance on Consent; letter to EPA, re: info request response; email between DPW 
Director & EPA; letter from EPA, re: draft Administrative Order on Consent 

IX. 2. Summary of Richmond sewer projects; Sanitary Sewer Policy; Redlines Sewer Connection 
& Dedication Agreement 

IX. 3. Email from Police Chief, re: Fourth of July activities dates 
IX. 4. Outline for 2017 ATM warrant articles (Town Admin); potential 2017 ATM warrant articles 

(PLUS) 
IX. 5. 12/6/16 Special Town Election ballot questions 
X. 1. Amendment to MOA with NPEDC, re: PLUS; original MOA 
X. 2. Draft sewer funding policy 
XI. 1. HDC appeal procedure; HDC appeal of 24 Hawthorne Lane; HDC file 


